
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY MARCH 18, 2025 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME: 6:30 PM 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 
a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the March 4, 2024, Regular City 

Council Meeting. 
b. Approval of Accounts Payable; (Batch #1 - Checks No. 23506-23, Batch #2 - 

Checks No. 23523-23539).   
c. Non—City Assembly Permit for Fishing Derby on Lake Sarah – Saturday, 

July 19, 2025. 
d. Funds Transfer Approval - RESOLUTION No. 2025-0318-01 

• Closing of Account 416 (City Hall Remodel Fund). 
 

5. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 

6. Hennepin County District 7 Commissioner Kevin Anderson - Annual Report. 
 
7. West Hennepin Public Safety – Director Gary Kroells: Presentation of the February 2025 

Activity Report. 
 
8. A proposed text amendment to the City of Independence Ordinance as follows: 

  
a. ORDINANCE No. 2025-02 – Considering a text amendment to Chapter V, Sections 510 

and 530 of the city’s zoning ordinance relating to regulations governing cannabis 
businesses.  The ordinance amendment will consider establishment of regulations 
pertaining to the definitions associated with a cannabis business and the permitted zoning 
district and associated standards. 
 

b. RESOLUTION No. 2025-0318-02 – Considering approval of a summary of ORDINANCE 
No. 2025-02 for publication. 

 
9. Purchase of Public Works Capital Equipment in Accordance with Capital Improvement Plan 

(Mower, Woodchipper and Utility Trailer). 
 



 
 

10. 2025 Gambling Proceeds Annual Report and Consideration to Fund Speed Control Signs. 
 

11. Open/Misc. 
 

12. Adjourn. 



 

 
City of Independence 1 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 pm March 4, 2025 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF 
THE INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL 
TUESDAY, MARCH 4, 2025 – 6:30 P.M. 

City Hall Chambers 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was 
called to order by Mayor Spencer at 6:30 p.m.  
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
Mayor Spencer led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
PRESENT: Spencer, Betts, McCoy 
ABSENT:   Grotting, Fisher 
STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, Administrative Services Director Simon, Public Works 

Supervisor Ben Lehman   
VISITORS:  City Attorney Vose, Bill Stoddard, Bob Topp. 
 

 
4. ****CONSENT AGENDA**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on 
by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item 
will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 
a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the February 18, 2025, Regular City 

Council Meeting. 
b. Approval of Accounts Payable; (Batch #1 - Checks No. 23460-23465, Batch #2 - Checks 

No. 23466-23480, Batch #3 - Checks No. 23481-23494 and Batch #4 - Checks No. 
23495-23505).). 

c. Approval of annual liquor/tobacco license renewals for the following establishments: 
i. Ox Yoke Inn - Off Sale, On Sale and Sunday License 

ii. Windsong Farm Golf Club LLC - Off Sale, On Sale, Sunday and Tobacco License 
iii. Pioneer Creek Golf LLC - On Sale and Sunday License 

d. Approval of a Temporary Gambling Permit – Orono Baseball Association Event on 
May 4, 2025. 
 

Motion by Betts, seconded by McCoy to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Spencer, Betts, 
and McCoy. Nays: None. Absent: Grotting, Fisher. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED 
CARRIED. 3-0  
 

 
5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc. 

 
6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 

 
Betts – None  



 

 
City of Independence 2 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 pm March 4, 2025 

McCoy – None 
Spencer attended the following meetings:   

• League of Minnesota Cities/LMC Experience Conference 
• lunch with Marvin 
• met with Joe Baker and a resident about wetland violation  

 
Simon – None 
Kaltsas – None  
 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING: City Council Consideration of the City’s Street Reconstruction Plan for the 

years 2025-2029 (the “Plan”) and the issuance of general obligation street reconstruction bonds in an 
estimated aggregate principal amount not to exceed $2,000,000 (the “Bonds”). 

 
 
Tammy – Northland Public Finance serving as an advisor. In order to issue general obligation bonds for the 
street reconstruction plan, you must have specific authority. When there are no assessments or when less than 
20%, in order to issue street reconstruction bonds, you must hold Public Hearing (doing tonight), then a 
resolution, and must not to exceed $2 million but no more than that without having another Public Hearing. 
This resolution is subject to reverse referendum and was published in the paper. Voters would have 30 days to 
file petition and would require 5% of previous municipal election to call it to a vote. Tonight is about taking 
action related to authority to issue bonds up to $2 million.  Later there will be another council meeting about 
the sale of bonds. 
 
Kaltsas – We’re working on those plans trying to find the exact amount and figuring out what the bid looks 
like. We have made it known that we will be doing bids and reached out to a few. This is unique, not many 
cities go out for 50,000 tons of gravel road. Lots of cities do bituminous. We feel good about bidding 
environment to initiate that bid with an award at end of April/early May aiming for the $1.8-2 million mark. 
 
Public Hearing Opened 
 
McCoy seconded by Betts to close Public Hearing. Ayes: Spencer, Betts, and McCoy. Nays: None. 
Absent: Grotting, Fisher. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 3-0 
 
 

a. RESOLUTION No. 25-0304-01 – Approving the City’s 2025-2029 Street Reconstruction 
Plan. 

 
Motion by Spencer, seconded by McCoy to approve Resolution 25-0304-01 approving a street 
reconstruction plan and authorizing the issuance of general obligation street reconstruction bonds. 
Ayes: Spencer, Betts, and McCoy. Nays: None. Absent: Grotting, Fisher. Abstain. None. MOTION 
DECLARED CARRIED. 3-0  
 

8. A proposed text amendment to the City of Independence Ordinance as follows: 
  

Kaltsas – This comes to Council after being considered by Planning Commission and recommended for 
approval to Council. There are two pieces of this. Rules were drafted last summer, provided parameters to 
regulations to businesses. Cities have authority with zoning regulations (where they’re allowed within the 



 

 
City of Independence 3 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 pm March 4, 2025 

city) and ordinances for registration of cannabis businesses. We have ability to adopt or leave the 
authority to the county (Hennepin). We are recommending authority be maintained by the City. The 
ordinance for zoning was discussed by Planning Commission but they did not review cannabis business 
registration as that authority is outside their role and is the City Council’s. For Land use: We can’t 
prohibit, however we can regulate which parts of the city by zoning they can go to. We can have buffers 
around certain land uses. The City looked at land uses that we have guided by the Comprehensive Plan, 
and Planning Commission reviewed all cannabis uses being regulated by Cannabis Management (listed in 
table and in the ordinance as Definitions). Types of uses are Retail, Non-retail Uses, Lower Potency 
Hemp Retailers, and Full Potency Hemp Retailers.  Low Potency Hemp Retailers (no more than 5mg 
THC) would be seen as a tobacco shop, brewery with infused seltzer or beer, etc., & liquor store 
(infused/edible), these are more common. Low Potency, Full Potency Retail (medical retail, medial 
dispensary, cannabis retailer), and Mezzobusinesses & Microbusinesses (both cultivate, retail). Planning 
Commission suggested limiting all cannabis retail to the Urban Commercial/UC zoning district (the 
approximately 60 acres at the intersection of County Line Rd and Hwy 12 adjacent to Delano’s business 
district). Planning Commission thought most appropriate given lack of retail uses anywhere else in the 
city. There was discussion about Commercial/Light Industrial (CLI) on City Hall area and Co Rd 90 and 
Hwy 12. They felt that was too close to parks, residential, and other areas community members drive 
through frequently. They recommended for Council that all cannabis businesses only located in Urban 
Commercial/UC. Other types (cannabis event organizer, manufacturer, testing facility, medical organizer, 
wholesaler, where they don’t have direct retail sales) they felt could go Commercial Light Industrial/CLI 
or Urban Commercial/UC warehouse offices. They also discussed Agricultural/AG district (2/3 of 
Independence) and felt that there was no reason to open it up to this district as we don’t yet know enough 
and how they produce. The cannabis type is becoming more technical. We’re talking about inside 
growing, regulated. Planning Commission doesn’t want AG to be included. Maybe in the future when we 
know more. Cities less than 12,500 population can limit Full Potency retail business to (1). Planning 
Commission has recommended we limit to (1). We can limit to (3) for Low Potency Hemp Edible 
Businesses. Other businesses like Testing, Wholesalers, those are not regulated for numbers, just 
locations. Planning Commission is recommending Conditional Use Permit/CUP uses, not permitted uses. 
The City can be more involved to see what it entails. We talked about a buffer and if it makes sense. 
Commercial Light Industrial/CLI does have some overlap with Pioneer Park. Based on Planning 
Commission recommending not utilizing Commercial Light Industrial/CLI. The buffer is not needed and 
would hurt any other retailers that want to lease the existing buildings. All retail is only Urban 
Commercial. Only Conditional Use Permit/CUP.  
The 2nd piece is the Registration ordinance drafted as a model ordinance to say that cities have the ability 
to regulate through registration to a retail business that (1) has a valid license through Office of Cannabis 
Management/OCM; (2) has paid the registration fee or renewal fee (if applicable); (3) is found to be in 
compliance with the requirements of the Cannabis Act at any preliminary compliance check; and (4) if 
applicable, is current on all property taxes and assessments. This is similar to how we issue liquor licenses 
and tobacco licenses. We can’t make lots of money on it, we’re limited on that. We do the background 
checks and can do annual minor sales investigations. Maple Plain also adopted the same ordinance so 
West Hennepin Public Safety would appreciate the same rules across both cities. We are not making this 
up. We are taking model ordinances and learn what we can and can’t do. I anticipate us talking about this 
again once everyone understands more.   
Attorney Vose – Great overview and summarizing limitations which are pretty consistent across other 
cities. The registration piece is tied to your ability to impose the limits of (1) for cities with less than 
12,500 population limit on retail establishments. We have to do Registration in order to impose limit. 
Betts – I read something about a bunk house and sleeping quarters. 



 

 
City of Independence 4 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 pm March 4, 2025 

Kaltsas – I show definitions above the new definitions to show where it is in our ordinances. We still have 
a definition. We don’t allow them as a use, we just define them in our ordinance. Bunkhouses are not 
permitted. Just because something is defined does not mean it is permitted. That’s a very good question. 
McCoy – I am very uncomfortable without buffers although we’re limiting to that Urban Commercial/UC 
area out by Delano. There is a church on County Line Rd.  Daycares, churches. If something falls in these 
categories, I would like it already in the ordinance if someone comes in for licensing. Secondly, if we 
have buffer in there, and we have a business and we have a daycare or treatment facility, etc., does that 
force them out or do they stay because they were there first? 
Kaltsas – If we enact buffers and it’s applicable (it’s within 500 ft), so if we have a church or daycare 
coming to an area and they have the 500 ft buffer, if they’re there, then the buffer would be applicable to 
any new business and couldn’t come into that 500 ft. buffer. If the business was existing today prior to the 
enactment, it would be grandfathered in, and we couldn’t push them out.  
McCoy – The Methodist and Lutheran churches could fall into that buffer zone.  
Spencer – Delano United is closer 
Kaltsas – Delano United might be and would have to be a daycare. 
McCoy- I feel strongly churches should be included in this because they often have more youth activities 
going on sometimes more than daycares or in parks.  
Spencer – If we put a buffer around that (Delano United), it would exclude most of the area.  
Kaltsas – It would exclude the Northern part but not the SE corner. 500 ft from Delano gets us to Hwy 12. 
It would exclude the entirety of the northern piece of our Urban Commercial/UC district meaning that 
we’re limiting it to just the SE corner of County Line & Hwy 12.  
Spencer - Is it legal to limit it to that small of an area for opportunity? 
Vose – Honestly, I don’t know. That will be one of the many things tested. Legislature has said you have 
the authority to establish these buffers and the consequence of that are to very much limit and know your 
position will be that we’ve been authorized to do that. The fact that you are going to require a Conditional 
Use Permit/CUP for all these gives you a stronger argument.  
Kaltsas – It leaves about 40 acres if placing buffer. The buffer issue would be an issue on community 
park. There’s no daycare now at the Delano Community Church. Planning Commission said we don’t 
want to restrict like Sam’s new business from non-retail users because they could be a viable business for 
them.  
McCoy – I’m mostly concerned with retail. I don’t know if it crosses city boundaries. There could be a 
daycare across from County Line Rd. I’m uncomfortable with it without buffers. 
Vose – This isn’t a race yet. We are getting closer, but you can make a revision and bring it back.  
Spencer – I kind of agree. I was going to bring up Delano United Methodist. I don’t think they are doing 
anything now, so it’s currently just their Sunday School and childcare during their services. But Light of 
Christ does HeadStart. If they were to move to Methodist, it would be in the buffer. I would like to see 
that in there. We may be overly restrictive but at least we have a place holder in there.  
McCoy – If they come in there for Conditional Use Permit/CUP, at least it’s in our ordinance.  
Spencer – Can we add the buffer around places of worship that offers childcare or other than just during 
their Sunday services, I’d like to see that, too.  
Kaltsas – Yes, we can add that and bring it back. We wouldn’t add the park language but would add 500 
ft buffer from churches and childcare. Could we adopt the Registration ordinance? 
Vose – The first to occur is parties seeking registration. Move forward with that.  
McCoy – I wish we could charge the same as on-sale liquor.  
Kaltsas – Because it is regulated by the state, it’s 50% of state fees or less. $2,500 for Full and $1,500 for 
Low Potency which are pretty nominal fees.   



 

 
City of Independence 5 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 pm March 4, 2025 

Spencer – So we’re going to Table Ordinance No. 2025-01 and Ordinance No. 2025-02. What’s the 
purpose of the 2nd part of each one? 
Kaltsas – So we publish a single page summary saving cost.  
Spencer - We adopt the ordinance but publish the summary. 
Vose – We technically to prove a summary publish change to resolution summary. 
Would we change the number to 2025- adopt as a resolution 25-0304-02 (Ordinance 2025-03 stays the 
same).  
 

a. ORDINANCE No. 2025-01 – Considering a text amendment to Chapter V, Sections 510 
and 530 of the city’s zoning ordinance relating to regulations governing cannabis 
businesses.  The ordinance amendment will consider establishment of regulations 
pertaining to the definitions associated with a cannabis business and the permitted zoning 
district and associated standards. 
 
TABLED  
 

b. SUMMARY ORDINANCE No. 2025-02 – Considering approval of a summary ordinance 
for publication. 

 
TABLED   

 
c. ORDINANCE No. 2025-03 – Considering a text amendment to Chapter XI, Establishing 

Section 1101 of the city’s zoning ordinance relating to regulations governing cannabis 
retail business registration.  The ordinance amendment will consider establishment of 
regulations pertaining to the licensing and registration of cannabis businesses.  

 
Ordinances No. 2025-01 and 2025-02 were both tabled tonight, so the number for this was correctly 
changed.   
 
Motion by Betts, seconded by McCoy to approve Ordinance No. 2025-01 amending 
Independence City Code regarding Cannabis Retail Business Registration.  Ayes: Spencer, 
Betts, McCoy. Nays: None. Absent: Grotting, Fisher. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED 
CARRIED. 3-0 

 
d. SUMMARY ORDINANCE No. 2025-04 – Considering approval of a summary ordinance 

for publication. 
 
Council and Attorney discussed this must be changed from Summary Ordinance No. 2025-04 to 
Summary Resolution No. 25-0304-02.  
 
Motion by McCoy, seconded by Betts to approve Summary Resolution No 25-0304-02 approving 
publication of a summary of the cannabis retail business registration ordinance. Ayes: Spencer, 
Betts, and McCoy. Nays: None. Absent: Grotting, Fisher. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED 
CARRIED. 3-0  
 
The others will be brought back for a needed 4:5 vote.  
 



 

 
City of Independence 6 
City Council Meeting Minutes 
6:30 pm March 4, 2025 

 
9. Open/Misc. 

 
 

10. Adjourn. 
 
Motion by McCoy, seconded by Betts to adjourn the meeting at 7:13 pm.  Ayes: Spencer, Betts, 
McCoy. Nays: None. Absent: Grotting, Fisher. Abstain. None. MOTION DECLARED 
CARRIED. 3-0  
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:13 pm. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Linda Johnson/ Recording Secretary 







 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 
Funds Transfer 

 
To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date: March 18, 2025 

Discussion: 

The city’s accountant had recommended that we consider closing the 416 City Hall Remodel 
Fund in January of 2025.  Staff understood that there was a balance remaining in that account.  
We approved a resolution closing the account and transferring the balance to the general fund.  
Accounting just notified us that they had incorrectly shown it as a positive balance in our 
correspondence.  We are recommending that we adopt a resolution that corrects the transfer 
from the general fund to fund 416 so that the account can be closed.   
 
A detailed breakdown of all funds proposed to be closed and or transferred can be found below. 
 
Recommendation: 
The City Council is being asked to consider approval of the proposed fund transfer and fund 
closing. 
 

Transfer to Transfer from Amount Reason 

Fund 416 – City Hall 
Remodel 

Fund 100 – General  $10,763.95 Closing out the 416 City Hall Remodel 
Fund. 

 

 
Attachments: 

1. RESOLUTION No. 25-0318-02 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 25-0318-01 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING FUNDS TRANSFER  

 
 

WHEREAS, the City has the following transfers to be made: 
 

Transfer to Transfer from Amount Reason 
Fund 416 – City 
Hall Remodel 

Fund 100 – General  $10,763.95  Closing out the 416 City Hall 
Remodel Fund. 

 
WHEREAS, Fund 416 (City Hall Remodel Fund) has a negative balance following 

completion of all noted obligations and the City has determined that the remaining funds should 
transferred as shown above to better serve the City and following the transfer, the fund should be 
closed; and  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Independence hereby approves the fund transfer and purchase of the Toro mower utilizing Public 
Works Capital Improvement funds effective December 31, 2024. 

 
` 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on 
this 18th day of March 2025, by a vote of  ayes and  nays. 

 
 
 
 

Brad Spencer, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 

      

Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 





Commissioner 
Kevin Anderson
• Serving District 7 since 2021

• Chair - Public Works Committee

• Vice Chair – Housing Redevelopment Authority

• Vice Chair - Health Committee

• Chair - AMC Business and Partner Development

• Appointed to AMC Transportation and 
Infrastructure, Land Bank Twin Cities, 
Metropolitan Emergency Services Board, 
Metropolitan Mosquito Control District, etc



• 2024

• Chip Seal on County Road 6 & County Road 110

• Pedestrian Ramp Upgrades on County Road 19 at the 
Luce Line State Trail

• Overlay on County Road 50 (Rebecca Park Trail)

• 2025

• Stabilized Full Depth Reclamation on County Road 92

• Cold In-Place Recycling on County Road 92

Public Works Projects



Click to edit Master title style

Building housing capacity to address gaps



Building housing capacity to address gaps 5

27% of households pay more than 
30% of their income for housing
They are at risk of being unable to 
afford to meet other basic needs: 
• Health care

• Food 
• Transportation
• Education 

Housing burden and impact on basic needs



County role in housing ecosystem

State housing 
finance: 

primary funder of 
affordable housing

Cities: 
land use, 

regulations, zoning, 
affordable housing 

funders

County housing 
finance: 

gap funds for 
affordable housing

Public housing 
authorities: 
tenant- and 

unit-based rental 
assistance, 
high rises State and county 

human services: 
housing services 

and income 
supports for poor 
and/or disabled

Building housing capacity to address gaps



Hennepin County Housing Continuum

<3
0%

 A
M

I 
   

   
   

   
  3

1-
50

%
 A

M
I  

   
   

   
   

51
-8

0%
 A

M
I

Hennepin County 
administers 

$191 million annually 
in housing and 

homelessness across 
income levels, focusing on 

funding gaps, lowest 
incomes, racial disparities

Building housing capacity to address gaps



Hennepin County annual coordinated affordable 
housing development RFP
• Gap funding to develop or preserve affordable multifamily housing or 

create homeownership opportunities through new construction or 
acquisition and rehabilitation

• 2025 funding: 
• $5M Affordable Housing Incentive Fund (HRA levy)

• $5M Supportive Housing capital (HRA levy)

• $1.245M Homeownership Assistance Fund (HRA levy)

• RFP every January (current RFP closes January 28th)

Building housing capacity to address gaps



New local affordable housing aid (LAHA)

Hennepin County

Source Recipients Annual allocations

Local Affordable Housing Aid 
(funded by metro sales and 
use tax for housing)

25%: new rental assistance program
25%: Metropolitan Cities >10,000
50%: Metropolitan Counties

2024 Cities: $16,104,806
2024 Counties: $32,209,613

• Annual letter from Hennepin County to cities notifying planned uses, 
inviting consultation

• Hennepin County prioritizes affordable housing funding for projects 
receiving financial support from cities



Housing Development Funds

Coordinated 
Affordable 

Housing 
Development

Community 
Development 
Block Grants

Lead Hazard 
Reduction

Hennepin County



Energy & Environment Funds

Good 
Steward 
Grants

Opportunity 
Grants

Site Cleanup 
& Assessment 

Funds

Healthy Tree 
Canopy 
Grants

Aquatic 
Invasive Species 

Prevention 
Grants

Organics & 
Multifamily 

Waste Reduction 
Supplementary 

Funding

Hennepin County



Questions?



Date: 

To: 

From: 

March 12th , 2025 

Public Safety Commissioners 
City of Independence Council Members 
City of Maple Plain Council Members 

SUBJECT: 

Director Gary Kroells G~~ 
FEBRUARY 2025 ACTIVITY REPORT 

The purpose of this report is to give the reader a quick overview of the activities of the Public 
Safety Department each month. It also compares monthly and year-to-date information to the 
reader. 

The report is broken down into five categories, as defined by the Criminal Justice Reporting 
System. 

CRIMINAL-- Criminal is broken down into Part I and Part II crimes. 

Part I includes crimes against persons versus crimes against property; 
criminal homicide, forcible rape, robbery assault, aggravated assault, 
burglary -breaking or entering, larceny-theft, larceny analysis, motor 
vehicle theft and arson. 

Part II includes other assaults, forgery and counterfeiting, fraud, 
embezzlement, stolen property, buying, receiving, possession; vandalism, 
weapons, carrying, possessing, etc.; prostitution and commercialized vice, 
sex offenses; drug abuse violations, gambling, offenses against the family 
and children, driving under the influence, liquor laws, drunkenness, 
disorderly conduct, vagrancy, all other offenses, suspicion, curfew and 
loitering laws - persons under 18; and runaways - persons under 18. 

TRAFFIC-- Includes violations of the road and driving laws. 

PART Ill-- Lost and Found: Includes lost and found persons, animals, and property, 
and stalled and abandoned vehicles. 

PART IV-- Casualties: Includes all motor vehicle crashes, boating, and snowmobile; 
public home occupational accidents, fires, suicides, sudden deaths, 
burning permits, and burning violations. 

PART V-- Miscellaneous Public: Includes open doors, gun permit applications, 
suspicious activities, animal complaints, motorist assists, alarm calls, 
parking complaints, house checks, driving complaints, civil matters, family 
disputes, department assists. 

The balance of the report shows the total number of incidents handled, miles driven and how 
the Public Safety Department received calls. If anyone should desire more detailed statistical 
data, please contact my office. 



Monthly Activity Report 
February 2025 

This Same Month This Year Last Year 
Offense Month Last Year To Date To Date 

City Of Independence 

Criminal 2 3 6 5 
Traffic 68 76 191 178 

Part Ill 5 4 8 4 
Part IV 27 33 66 76 
Part V 98 99 182 193 

Total City of Independence 200 215 453 456 

City Of Maple Plain 

Criminal 2 3 6 4 
Traffic 42 24 85 46 
Part Ill 5 3 6 6 
Part IV 47 24 91 49 
Part V 33 42 68 86 

Total City Of Maple Plain 129 96 256 191 

Grand Total Both Cities 329 311 709 647 

TZD 25 18 49 38 
Agency Assists 21 19 41 40 
Total ICR Reports 375 348 799 725 

How Received 
Fax 6 8 10 12 
In Person 19 18 30 28 
Mail 0 2 2 4 
Other 0 0 3 1 
Phone 24 25 42 44 
Radio 142 133 287 283 
Visual 139 125 349 271 
Email 19 16 30 32 
Lobby Walk In 26 21 46 50 

Total 375 348 799 725 

Monthly Activity Report 2025 



February 2025 Part I & II City of Maple Plain #'s 1 & 2 

AGN ICR Title Create Date Grid# MOC range 
UCR 
Part 

WHPS 25000621 Damage Prop/Rpt 2025-02-16 01 P311C 2 

WHPS 25000496 Trespassing 2025-02-06 02 P3330 2 

February 2025 Part I & II City of Independence Grid #'s 3-5 

AGN ICR Title Create Date Grid# MOC range 
UCR 
Part 

WHPS 25000511 3rd Degree DWI Arrest 2025-02-07 03 M4140 2 

WHPS 25000613 
Damage Prop/Rpt-

2025-02-15 05 P311C 2 
Mailbox H&R 



600 THREE YEAR COMPARISON OF POLICE CALLS FOR 
SERVICE & ACTIVITY 

500 +------------------l J---------lo----------

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

■ 23 

Total 

■ 24 

Total 

■ 25 

Total 



DIRECTOR'S NEWS & NOTES 
WEST HENNEPIN PUBLIC SAFETY 

February 2025 Activity Report 

Year to Date Activity Report 

At the end of February 2025, West Hennepin Public Safety (WHPS) handled year-to
date a total of 799 incident complaints. For the month of February, 200 incidents 
occurred in the City of Independence and 129 in the City of Maple Plain. 

The Criminal Part I and Part II cases for both cities have been highlighted for your 
review on the attached documents. 

Welfare Check 
February 1 

5200 block of Bryantwood Drive, Maple Plain. Officer was dispatched to a 
welfare check. Reporting party advised their grandfather has bed sores 
from being bound to his bed, screams for help, and is not being fed or 
taken care of. Officers arrived on scene and spoke to the elderly male who 
advised he did not need assistance. He was sitting up and officers did not 
observe signs of injury or medical problems. He also had a bag of food 
hanging from his walker. 

Traffic Complaint 
February 2 

Intersection of Highway 12 and County Road 92, Maple Plain. Officer was 
dispatched to two vehicles driving fast and passing on the right. Officer 
arrived in the area and located both vehicles. The drivers were warned 
about their driving conduct and equipment violations. 

Suspicious Activity 
February 2 

7500 block of Turner Road, Independence. Officer was dispatched to 
suspicious activity where the reporting party advised there was an 
unknown person walking in their yard with a flashlight. Officer arrived on 
scene and observed the lights between the two properties. It was 
confirmed the neighbors were looking for their dog, which was later found. 



Arrest 
February 6 

Arrest 
February 7 

1500 block of Wyman Avenue, Maple Plain. Officer was dispatched to a 
report of three males attempting to access a vacant building. Officer was 
in the area and attempted to stop the individuals who took off on foot. 
Neighbors reported kids in their backyard hiding. A perimeter was setup 
and ultimately, all three were taken into custody. They were cited for 
trespassing and fleeing on foot. 

Intersection of Highway 12 and County Road 90, Independence. Officer 
was on routine patrol and stopped a vehicle after witnessing number traffic 
infractions. Officer spoke to the driver who displayed signs of impairment. 
There were six passengers in the vehicle and two of them were unbelted 
and sitting on other occupant's laps. All occupants were under 21 years 
old, and all admitted to drinking. Driver was ultimately arrested for DWI 
and provided an evidentiary breath sample of 0.19. All other occupants 
were released to a sober ride with minor consumption citations. 

Suspicious Vehicle 
February 8 

Medical 
February 10 

Intersection of County Road 6 and Golf Walk, Independence. Officer was 
on routine patrol and observed a vehicle with its lights on in a closed 
business parking lot. Officer approached the vehicle and spoke to the 
occupants who advised they were just parked to have a conversation. 
Officer determined no crime had occurred and to have their conversation 
elsewhere. 

5400 block of Lake Sarah Heights Drive, Independence. Officer was 
dispatched to a patient having a possible stroke. Officer arrived on scene 
with West Suburban Fire and assessed the patient. It was found the 
patient recently came back from Africa and started to not feel well. Family 
advised the patient's health continued to decline over the last few days 
and then the patient began making noise, but not speaking. North 
Memorial Paramedics arrived on scene and transport the patient to the 
hospital. 



Mental Health 
February 12 

2000 block of Budd Street, Independence. Officer was dispatched to a 
party in crisis with a knife. Officer arrived on scene and spoke to the 
subject's father who advised he's in a manic state and threatened self
harm with a knife. It was learned the subject eventually calms down after 
episodes. Officers took a perimeter to avoid escalation until he calmed 
down and dropped the knife. Subject's father advised we could clear. 
Case forwarded to the embedded social worker for follow-up. 

Suspicious Vehicle 
February 12 

Crash 
February 13 

Crash 
February 14 

6200 block of Highway 12, Independence. Officer was on routine patrol 
and observed a vehicle parked skewed behind two other vehicles. Due to 
the time of night and the vehicle's position, officer made contact with the 
occupants of the vehicle. They advised they were trying to add minutes to 
their phone before dropping off the passenger. It was determined no crime 
had occurred. 

400 block of County Road 110, Independence. Officer was dispatched to a 
hit and run report of a vehicle versus a mailbox. Officer arrived on scene 
and collected damaged parts of the vehicle that struck the mailbox. 
Unknown suspect information. 

Intersection of County Line Road and County Road 50, Independence. 
Officer was dispatched to a truck in the ditch. Officer inspected the scene, 
and it appeared the truck failed to stop at the T intersection. The truck 
ended up in the ditch with severe disabling damage, losing both driver's 
side wheels. Driver was not on scene and denied drinking even though 
open containers were found inside and outside of the vehicle. Driver was 
mailed a citation for failure to drive with due care. 

Animal Complaint 
February 16 

9300 block of County Road 6, Independence. Officer was dispatched to 
three dogs attacking livestock. Officer arrived on scene and the dogs ran 
off. Officer was able to locate an address for the dogs and spoke to the 
dog's owners who advised they take full responsibility. Officer spoke to the 
livestock owners who advised the dogs were in the donkey pen and got 
a hold of one of the donkeys who had distinct puncture wounds. 
Potentially dangerous dog documents and dog at large citation were 
issued. 



Crash 
February 20 

Intersection of Lake Sarah Drive and County Road 11, Independence. 
Officer was dispatched to a vehicle in the ditch. Officer arrived on scene 
and found the vehicle unoccupied, and no damage was done. It appeared 
the vehicle went into the ditch after attempting to make a U-turn. 
Registered owner was contacted and advised they would get the vehicle 
out of the ditch. 

Burning Violation 
February 20 

Crash 
February 21 

Domestic 
February 22 

2200 block of Heritage Trail, Independence. Officer observed black smoke 
in the area. The burn site location was located, and it was found the 
property owner had a valid burn permit but was burning prohibited 
materials. They were issued a citation for burn prohibited materials and 
their burn permit has been revoked. 

Intersection of County Road 6 and County Road 92, Independence. 
Officer was dispatched to a crash with injuries. Officer arrived on scene 
and found one driver failed to yield for the other vehicle and had a 
concussion. Both vehicles sustained disabling damage. Driver was 
transported to the hospital. The suspect driver was cited for failure to yield. 

5300 block of Highway 12, Maple Plain. Officer was dispatched to a 
domestic between two individuals. Officer arrived on scene and spoke to 
one party who advised his girlfriend scratched his hand and locked him 
out of the bedroom. It was found the argument started because the male 
party took away the female's phone. The two agreed to separate. There 
were no visible injuries. 

Animal Complaint 
February 23 

Intersection of Lake Haughey Road and County Road 11, Independence. 
Officer was dispatched to a loose dog running on the side of the road. 
Reporting party was able to capture the dog and drop it off at the police 
department with an officer. A short time later, the animal owner was 
located and retrieved the dog. 



Animal Complaint 
February 26 

Intersection of Highway 12 and Hitsman Lane, Independence. Officer was 
dispatched to a report of a bald eagle possibly stuck to the ice on a nearby 
pond. Officer checked the area and was unable to locate any type of 
animal on an ice-covered pond. 

Dumping Complaint 
February 26 

2000 block of County Road 90, Independence. Officer was dispatched to a 
dumping complaint where a large amount of electrical wire was dumped at 
the park. Officer arrived on scene and met with the reporting party who 
advised he is a volunteer park caretaker and offered to clean it up. 
Pending further investigation. 

Suspicious Activity 
February 27 

3300 block of Brei Kessel Road, Independence. Officer was dispatched to 
a report of suspicious activity that occurred overnight. The reporting party 
wanted it documented that she observed a person with a flashlight by her 
neighbor's front door late at night. The next day, she confirmed it wasn 't 
the neighbor. Extra patrol will be conducted in the area. Reporting party 
was advised to call 911 immediately when suspicious activity is witnessed . 



Cannabis Ordinance Amendment March 18, 2025 
 Page 1 
 

City of Independence 
Proposed Amendment to the City of Independence Ordinances  

Chapter 5: Section 510 and 530 Pertaining to Regulations Governing Cannabis Businesses 
 

To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Planner 

Meeting Date: March 18, 2025 

 
Consideration: 
A proposed text amendment to the City of Independence Ordinance as follows: 
  

a. A text amendment to Chapter V, Sections 510 and 530 of the city’s zoning ordinance 
relating to regulations governing cannabis businesses.  The ordinance amendment 
will consider establishment of regulations pertaining to the definitions associated with 
a cannabis business and the permitted zoning district and associated standards. 

 
UPDATE:  
City Council reviewed and considered the amendment at the March 4th, 2025, City Council 
Meeting.  Council provided direction to include the allowed buffer in the final draft of the 
ordinance.  Staff has revised the ordinance to include the buffer noting that it will not have any 
impacts on the non-retail businesses permitted in the Commercial Light Industrial zoning 
District.   
 
Council can consider approval of Ordinance 2025-02 and Resolution No. 25-0318-02 
approving the summary publication. 
 
 
Discussion:  
On July 31, the Office of Cannabis Management issued the first draft of its administrative rules 
related to adult-use cannabis in Minnesota – the language can be found at the following link. The 
section on local government control is sparce and only provides clarification related to the 
registration process.  
 

https://mn.gov/ocm/assets/first-draft-of-cannabis-rules_tcm1202-639141.pdf


Cannabis Ordinance Amendment March 18, 2025 
 Page 2 
 

Under the Cannabis Act, cities generally maintain their ability to enact zoning regulations with 
two primary limitations: (1) the City may not prohibit the establishment or operation of a 
cannabis or hemp business licensed by the OCM; and (2) the Legislature has established a 
maximum buffer from certain uses. Cities will retain the ability to enact zoning ordinances even 
if it consents to have the county issue registrations (City Council may consider a registration 
requirement). 
  
The City can amend its zoning code to specifically allow each business type in a particular 
district or it can choose to simply allow cannabis businesses in zones with similar uses (e.g., 
retailers in commercial zones with other retail).  Staff has reviewed the current zoning districts 
within the city and drafted an ordinance amendment that was considered by the Planning 
Commission.  Attached to this report are the zoning and registration ordinances (registration 
ordinance for information only).  The following summarizes the key elements of the proposed 
ordinance amendment:  
 

• The city can determine which types of cannabis businesses can be in which zoning 
districts of the city.  Staff has reviewed the various uses and recommends that all 
cannabis uses are considered as conditional uses within their respective zoning districts. 
The following is a comprehensive table of the types of uses and their proposed allowable 
zoning district in the city.  Staff prepared this for an initial discussion only and will be 
seeking Planning Commission feedback relating to the various uses and allowed zoning 
districts. 
 
License Type Main Function District 

Cannabis Retailer Sales to the customers Urban Commercial - UC 

Medical Cannabis Retailer Sales to registered patients Urban Commercial - UC 

Cannabis Delivery Service Delivery of products directly to customers Urban Commercial - UC  and 
CLI – Commercial Light 
Industrial 

Lower Potency Hemp 
Retailer 

Sale of hemp products directly to customers Urban Commercial - UC 

Cannabis Cultivator Growing and tending to cannabis and hemp 
plants 

Urban Commercial - UC  and 
CLI – Commercial Light 
Industrial 

Medical Cannabis Cultivator Growing cannabis plants Urban Commercial - UC  and 
CLI – Commercial Light 
Industrial 

Cannabis Event Organizer Coordinate cannabis events Urban Commercial - UC  and 
CLI – Commercial Light 
Industrial 

Cannabis Manufacturer Create cannabis products that are sold to 
retailers 

Urban Commercial - UC  and 
CLI – Commercial Light 
Industrial 

Medical Cannabis 
Manufacturer 

Creating cannabis products that are sold to 
medical retailers 

Urban Commercial - UC  and 
CLI – Commercial Light 
Industrial 



Cannabis Ordinance Amendment March 18, 2025 
 Page 3 
 

Lower-Potency Hemp Edible 
Manufacturer 

Creating lower-potency hemp products that are 
sold to retailers 

Urban Commercial - UC  and 
CLI – Commercial Light 
Industrial 

Cannabis Testing  
 

Testing cannabis and hemp products Urban Commercial - UC  and 
CLI – Commercial Light 
Industrial 

Cannabis Wholesaler Warehousing and Storage Urban Commercial - UC  and 
CLI – Commercial Light 
Industrial 

Cannabis Transporter Transport products from one license type to 
another. 

Urban Commercial - UC  and 
CLI – Commercial Light 
Industrial 

Medical Cannabis 
Combination Business 

Cultivation, Manufacturing, and Retail to both 
the public and medical patients.  

Urban Commercial - UC 

Cannabis Mezzobusiness Cultivation, 
Manufacturing, and Retail 

Urban Commercial - UC 

Cannabis Microbusiness Cultivation, 
Manufacturing, and Retail 

Urban Commercial - UC 

• Any retail user (Low Potency Hemp Edible, Cannabis Microbusiness, Cannabis 
Mezzobusiness, Cannabis Retailer and Medical Cannabis Retailer) would be permitted only 
within the UC-Urban Commercial zoning district.  

 
• All other cannabis businesses would be permitted in both the UC-Urban Commercial 

zoning district and the CLI – Commercial Light Industrial zoning district.   
 

• Cannabis Retailers, Cannabis Microbusinesses, Cannabis Mezzobusiness, and Medical 
Cannabis Retailer are limited to one (1) for the entire city (cities less than 12,500 can 
limit to 1).   

 
• Low Potency Hemp Edible Retailer (i.e., tobacco shop with edibles) would be limited in 

number to three (3) (cities less than 12,500 can limit to 3) 
 

• All cannabis business (including low potency hemp) are conditional uses.  
 

o The city can add additional conditions within the CUP portion of the ordinance if 
more restrictions are reasonable.  Staff is seeking additional direction relating to 
the additional conditions from the Planning Commission. 

 
• A local unit of government may prohibit the operation of a cannabis business within 

(maximum buffer distance allowed): 
 

o 1. 1,000 feet of a school; or 
 



Cannabis Ordinance Amendment March 18, 2025 
 Page 4 
 

o 500 feet of a day care, residential treatment facility, or an attraction within a 
public park that is regularly used by minors, including a playground or athletic 
field. 
 

The terms school, day care, residential treatment facility, and attraction within a public 
park that is regularly used by minors, including a playground or athletic field are not 
further defined in statute or administrative rule, so the city has some discretion in 
defining these terms. The OCM guide includes some definitions that were drafted for the 
OCM’s model ordinance (which is different than the administrative rules).  

 
Planning Commissioners reviewed the potential buffer (see map below) and noted that 
the buffer limited much of the CLI zoning district from having non-retail businesses.  
Commissioners recommended removing the buffer from the proposed ordinance. 
 
 

 
 



Cannabis Ordinance Amendment March 18, 2025 
 Page 5 
 

• As noted above, it is anticipated that the City Council will consider the registration 
requirement to all cannabis businesses as provided below.   

•  
o The OCM reviews, approves, and issues cannabis business licenses. However, 

each retail business must also register with the city in which it will operate, unless 
the city has consented to the county issuing registrations on its behalf. A 
registration fee can be imposed in addition to the state license fee.  
 

o The registration process involves issuing a registration to a retail business that: (1) 
has a valid license issued by the OCM; (2) has paid the registration fee or renewal 
fee (if applicable); (3) is found to be in compliance with the requirements of the 
Cannabis Act at any preliminary compliance check; and (4) if applicable, is 
current on all property taxes and assessments. 

 
  

Planning Commission Discussion and Recommendation: 
 Commissioners reviewed the issue and asked questions of staff and discussed the ordinance.  

Commissioners recommended allowing the retail businesses only within the UC-Urban Commercial 
zoning district noting that there are residential properties within close proximity to the CLI zoning 
district.  Commissioners also discussed the other types of cannabis businesses and noted that they were 
compatible with the CLI or UC zoning districts.  Commissioners discussed the buffer around Pioneer 
Creek Community Park and noted that if the city would not permit retail cannabis businesses in the CLI 
zoning district, then the buffer would not really be necessary for the remainder of generally warehouse 
type users.  Commissioners recommended approval of the ordinance to the City Council with the 
conditions and changes noted. 
 
 
Summary: 
City Council is being asked to consider approval of Ordinance 2025-02 and Resolution No. 25-
0318-01 approving the summary publication. 

 
   
 
 

Attachments:   Ordinance 2025-02  
   Resolution No. 25-0318-01 
    
    
    

 
  

 
    

 



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2025-02 

 
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

COUNTY OF HENNEPIN 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING INDEPENDENCE CITY CODE REGARDING ZONING 

RELATED TO CANNABIS BUSINESSES 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF INDEPENDENCE DOES ORDAIN: 
 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  The Independence City Code Chapter 510.05 and 
530.13 are hereby amended as set forth below to add the underlined language as follows: 
 

Section 510.05. - Definitions 
 
*** 
 
Subd. 11. "Bunkhouse." A building accessory to a principal use that contains 

sleeping quarters for one or more persons who are employed in 
connection with the principal use of the premises. 

Subd. 12.  “Cannabis Business” is a business involved with cannabis. 

Subd. 13.  “Cannabis Business Buffer” is a 1000-foot buffer from public and private 
schools and a 500-foot buffer from a day care, residential treatment 
facility, public park, or athletic field for cannabis retailers, cannabis 
microbusinesses with a retail endorsement, cannabis mezzobusinesses 
with a retail endorsement, medical cannabis retailers, and medical 
cannabis combinations businesses.  Lower-potency hemp edible retailers 
have a buffer of 500 feet.   

Subd. 14. “Cannabis Business Retail Endorsement” is a cannabis business that may 
sell cannabis products directly to the public as regulated by state statute. 

Subd. 15.  “Cannabis Business Retail Limit” means that cannabis businesses with a 
retail endorsement, including cannabis retailers, cannabis 
mezzobusinesses, and cannabis microbusinesses, except lower-potency 
hemp edible retailer, shall be limited to one business per 12,500 residents 
within the city, excluding lower-potency hemp edible retailers.  

Subd. 16. “Cannabis Cultivator” is a cannabis business as defined in state statute. 

Subd. 17. “Cannabis Delivery Service” is a cannabis business as defined in state 
statute. 



2 
 

Subd. 18.  “Cannabis Event Organizer” is a cannabis business as defined in state 
statute. 

Subd. 19.  “Cannabis Manufacturer” is a cannabis business as defined in state statute. 

Subd. 20. “Cannabis Mezzobusiness” is a cannabis business as defined in state 
statute. 

Subd. 21. “Cannabis Microbusiness” is a cannabis business as defined in state 
statute. 

Subd. 22. “Cannabis Retailer” is a cannabis business as defined in state statute. 

Subd. 23. “Cannabis Testing Facility” is a cannabis business as defined in state 
statute. 

Subd. 24. “Cannabis Transporter” is a cannabis business as defined in state statute. 

Subd. 25. “Cannabis Wholesaler” is a cannabis business as defined in state statute. 

 

*** 

 

Subd. 71. “Lower-Potency Hemp Edible Manufacturer” is a cannabis business as 
defined in state statute. 

Subd. 72. “Lower-Potency Hemp Edible Retailer” is a cannabis business as defined 
in state statute. 

Subd. 73.  “Lower-Potency Hemp Edible Retailer Limit” means that a lower-potency 
hemp edible retailer shall be limited to three businesses per 12,500 
residents within the city. 

Subd. 74. “Medical Cannabis Combination Business” is a cannabis business as 
defined in state statute.  

Subd. 75. “Medical Cannabis Cultivator” is a cannabis business as defined in state 
statute. 

Subd. 76. “Medical Cannabis Processor” is a cannabis business as defined in state 
statute. 

Subd. 77. “Medical Cannabis Retailer” is a cannabis business as defined in state 
statute. 



3 
 

Subd. 78. “Micro-distillery” means a facility that produces ethyl alcohol, hydrated 
oxide of ethyl, spirits of wine, whiskey, rum, brandy, gin, or other distiller 
spirits, including all dilutions and mixtures thereof, for non-industrial use 
not to exceed 40,000 proof-gallons per calendar year. 

*** 
 

Section 530.13. – Commercial - Light Industrial District Established 
 
*** 
 
Subd. 4.  Conditional uses. The following conditional uses may be permitted by action 

of the city council pursuant to subsections 520.09, 520.11 and 520.13: 
*** 

 
(3) Cannabis business, except lower-potency hemp edible retailer, cannabis 
retailers, cannabis microbusinesses, cannabis mezzobusiness, and medical 
cannabis retailer. 

 
1) Must be licensed by the state. 

 
2) Must be registered under city ordinance. 

 
3) Must meet the cannabis business buffer. 

 
4) Must not exceed the cannabis business retail limit. 

 
 

*** 
 

Section 530.19. – Urban Commercial - District Established 
 
*** 
 
Subd. 3.  Conditional uses. The following conditional uses may be permitted by action 

of the city council pursuant to subsections 520.09, 520.11 and 520.13: 
*** 
 (b) Lower-potency hemp edible retailer, cannabis retailers, cannabis 

microbusinesses, cannabis mezzobusiness, and medical cannabis retailer. 
 

1) Must be licensed by the state. 
 

2) Must be registered under city ordinance. 
 

3) Must meet the cannabis business buffer. 
 

4) Must not exceed the lower-potency hemp edible retailer limit. 

https://library.municode.com/mn/independence/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CHVPLLAUSRE_S520ZOAD_520.09PRCOUSPE
https://library.municode.com/mn/independence/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CHVPLLAUSRE_S520ZOAD_520.11CRGRCOUSPE
https://library.municode.com/mn/independence/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CHVPLLAUSRE_S520ZOAD_520.13CORE
https://library.municode.com/mn/independence/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CHVPLLAUSRE_S520ZOAD_520.09PRCOUSPE
https://library.municode.com/mn/independence/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CHVPLLAUSRE_S520ZOAD_520.11CRGRCOUSPE
https://library.municode.com/mn/independence/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CHVPLLAUSRE_S520ZOAD_520.13CORE


4 
 

 
5) Must not exceed the cannabis business retail limit. 

 
(f) Cannabis business, except lower-potency hemp edible retailer, cannabis 
retailers, cannabis microbusinesses, cannabis mezzobusiness, and medical 
cannabis retailer. 

 
1) Must be licensed by the state. 

 
2) Must be registered under city ordinance. 

 
 
 

SECTION 2.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
from and after its passage and publications as required by law. 
 
 Adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence this 18th day of March 2025. 
 
 
 
             
        Brad Spencer, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    _________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 



	

__________________________________________________________________________ 
763-479-0527 (Phone)                               1920 County Road 90                                   763-479-0528 (Fax) 

Independence, MN 55359 
www.ci.independence.mn.us 

	

RESOLUTION OF THE  
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 25-0318-02 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY OF THE  
CANNABIS RETAIL BUSINESS ZONING ORDINANCE 

 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF INDEPENDENCE DOES ORDAIN: 
  
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on March 18, 2025, Ordinance No. 2025-02, was 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence, Minnesota. 
 
 NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that, because of the lengthy nature of Ordinance No. 2025-
02, the following summary of the ordinance has been prepared for publication. 
 
 NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the ordinance adopted by the City Council amends 
City Code Chapter 5, of the Independence Zoning Ordinance, by specifically defining and 
subsequently specifying approved zoning districts for cannabis business based on type of business 
within the city.  The ordinance further stipulates the number of businesses that are permitted within 
the city based on type of business.  The city has also determined that all cannabis businesses 
defined in the ordinance shall be a conditional use requiring a conditional use permit. 
 
 A printed copy of the entire ordinance is available for inspection by any person during the 
City’s regular office hours at the City of Independence City Hall. 
 
 APPROVED for publication by the City Council of the City of Independence, Minnesota on 
this 18th day of March 2025.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



	

 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on this 18th day of 
March 2025, by a vote of ______ayes and ______nays. 
 

                                                                                  
_______________________________________ 

                                                            Brad Spencer, Mayor 
 
 
           ATTEST: 
 
           _______________________________________ 
           Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 



 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 
Public Works Capital Equipment Purchase – Woodchipper, Lawn Mower and Trailer 

 
To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date: March 18, 2025 

Discussion: 

The City annually approves a Public Works Capital Equipment plan that projects capital 
equipment purchases out twenty years.  The City has programmed the following purchases for 
2025: 
 
 
Lawn Mower:   $16,000 
Woodchipper:  $20,000 
Aerial Bucket Truck: $30,000 
 

 
The City has budgeted funds in accordance with the capital equipment plan to purchase the 
equipment using cash.  Public Works has also identified a need for a smaller utility trailer that 
could be used for moving lawnmowers around the city as needed along with small utility tasks.  
The city has obtained quotes for the lawn mower, woodchipper and trailer.  The city is still 
looking for an aerial bucket truck which would be considered at a later date.  The following 
summarizes the findings and recommended equipment purchases. 
 
 
 
 



 Page 2 

 

 
Mower 
The city has reviewed two mowers: 
 
Toro ZMaster 6000 Series 60 in. 31 HP: $16,296.00 
 
Hustler X-Ride Zero Turn 60 in. 34.5 HP: $14,136.51.00 
 
Staff is recommending that we purchase the Hustler X-Ride Zero Turn. 
 
Woodchipper 
The city has looked at both new and used woodchippers to identify the best possible solution.  
Public Works Supervisor has found a used unit that is low hours and in excellent condition.  The 
following summarizes the equipment reviewed: 
 
New 
Vermeer BC 1000 Gas:   $42,720 
Vermeer BC 1000 Diesel:  $50,720 
 
Used 
2017 Vermeer BC 1000 Gas:  $24,995 
 500 hours 
 private owner 
 
2017 Vermeer BC 1000 Diesel: $23,950 
 1500 hours 
  
 
Staff went and looked at all equipment and is recommending the purchase of the 2017 Vermeer 
BC 1000 Gas woodchipper.  This unit has very low hours and is being offered at a really good 
price.   
 
Trailer 
The city has obtained quotes and gone and looked at various trailer models.  The following 
summarizes the trailers considered: 
 
Brinkman’s 
Trophy 6.5 x 10-foot aluminum trailer (wood deck):   $3,385.50 
 
Davis Trailers 
JD Lund 6.5 x 10-foot aluminum trailer (aluminum deck):  $3,275.00 
 
Staff is recommending purchasing the JD Lund trailer. 
 
 



 Page 3 

 

Recommendation: 
The City Council is being asked to consider approval of the purchase of the mower, woodchipper 
and trailer as noted in this report.  The cost of the equipment is in keeping with the approved 
budget and can be fully funded by the public works capital improvement fund.  Any minor 
adjustments needed to complete the purchase will be accounted for in the 2026 updated capital 
improvement plan.  Council can authorize staff to complete the acquisition and sign all 
applicable agreements relating to the purchase of the recommended equipment. 
 
 
Attachments: Quotations and Specifications 
   

 







































 
City of Independence 

 
Review of Annual Gambling Proceeds Balance and  

Request to Consider Funding Speed Signs 
 

 
 

 
                To: City Council 
               From:  Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
  Meeting Date: March 18, 2025 

 

Discussion: 
The city annually reports the balance of the gambling proceeds obtained from gambling activities 
held in the city. The city ordinance requires organizations that partake in gambling activities to 
contribute 10% of all gambling activities to city.  In 2024 the city received $1,991.57 from the 
Northwest Tonka Lions Club for their operations at the Ox Yoke Inn (see attached annual report).   
 
The city currently has a balance of $14,318.08.  Funds obtained from gambling can only be used 
to fund specific activities, programs or organizations.  Gambling proceeds can be used for the 
following: 
 

 
 
The city recently purchased and installed two (2) speed control signs on Perkinsville Road.  The 
total cost of two signs was $10,870 and the city received a $2,500 CenterPoint Energy grant to 
offset a portion of the cost.  The remaining cost for the signs was $8,370.  Council is being asked 
to consider funding the remainder of the signs using gambling proceeds.   
 
 
Requested Action: 
Council is being asked to consider approving the use of gambling proceeds to fund the remaining cost 
($8,370) of the speed control signs on Perkinsville Road. 

 
 



Year:
Address: City: Independence ,MN Zip:

1ꓸ 10 %

2ꓸ

3ꓸ

Amount 
Contributed

$1,991.57

4ꓸ

5ꓸ

6. From Page 2, enter total of expenditures the city or county made from its 10% fund 6ꓸ

7. Year-end balance on December 31 (Line 5 minus Line 6; enter 0 if negative balance) 7ꓸ

Minnesota Statutes, Section 349.213, Subdivision 1, Paragraph (f)(2), allows a city or county to require (by ordinance) an 
organization to contribute up to 10% per year of net profits to a fund that the city or county administers. Click here for                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

City or County (may not be township):

more information:  https://mn.gov/gcb/start-here/cities-counties/

      fund administered by the city or county before making expenditures from the fund.
   ▪ Checks for contributions to the 10% fund must be written to the city or county  and deposited in a 

   ▪ Do not include amounts received for a local gambling regulatory tax or an investigation fee, or any 

LG510 City or County Annual Report—10% Lawful Gambling Contribution Fund

2/25

$1,991.57

$14,318.08

$14,318.08

5. Total required contributions and interest (add Lines 2, 3, and 4)

    (The Line 6 amount may not exceed the amount of Line 5)

If more than 15 organizations, total from 
additional attached sheet:

Northwest Tonka Lions Club 01830 Ox Yoke Inn

      any voluntary contributions made to a city or county by an organization (see LG555).

Name of Licensed Organization
License 
Number Site/Premises Name

2. Fund balance as of December 31 of previous calendar year 
    (If none or negative, enter 0.)
3. Interest earned, if any, on fund balance for the calendar year

MINNESOTA GAMBLING CONTROL BOARD

1. Contribution rate 
    (Up to 10% per year of net profits (may not exceed 10%; may not be a variable rate).

1920 County Road 90
City of Independence

$12,326.51

City or County Information
2024

55359
Financial Information, 10% Lawful Gambling Contribution Fund

4. Contributions received from licensed organizations for the 10% contribution fund: 
   ▪ Use separate line for each site in your jurisdiction; use additional sheets if necessary.
   ▪ You may use one total for “Amount Contributed” per organization, rather than per site.

https://mn.gov/gcb/start-here/cities-counties/
https://mn.gov/gcb/start-here/cities-counties/
https://mn.gov/gcb/start-here/cities-counties/
https://mn.gov/gcb/start-here/cities-counties/
https://mn.gov/gcb/start-here/cities-counties/
https://mn.gov/gcb/start-here/cities-counties/
https://mn.gov/gcb/start-here/cities-counties/
https://mn.gov/gcb/start-here/cities-counties/


Code*

A13 - With DNR approval, wildlife management projects/activities benfitting the public-at-large; maintaining snowmobile

A14 - For nutritional programs, food shelves, and congregate dining programs for persons age 62 or older or disabled.
A15 - For community arts organizations, or sponsorship of community arts programs.
A19 - For humanitarian service, recognizing volunteerism or philanthropy.

LG510 page 2 of 3

2/25
6. Using the "A-codes" below, provide a detailed description of each expenditure made from the 10% contribution fund. 
Expenditures may only be used for the listed lawful purposes. Expenditures made from a city’s or county’s 10% contribution fund 
are subject to the same requirements as licensed lawful gambling organizations. Contributions may not be made to organization 
contributing to the 10% fund.

Amount

$0.00
* Use the codes listed below to describe expenditures from the 10% lawful gambling contribution fund.

A12 - With Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (PCA) approval, citizen monitoring of surface water quality by individuals.

   A6 - For recognition of military service or to support active military personnel and their immediate family members in need.

A10 - Expenditures for police, fire, and other emergency or public safety-related services, equipment, and training. Pension 

LG510 page 1 of 3

   A1 - To a 501(c)(3) organization or a 501(c)(4) festival organization.
   A2 - To relieve effects of poverty, homelessness, or disability.
   A3 - Program for education, prevention, or treatment of problem gambling.
   A4 - To a public or private nonprofit school.
   A5 - To a scholarship fund.

   A7 - Activities and facilities intended primarily for youth.

           fund contributions are not allowed.

A11 - To a church.

           or ATV trails, or other trails open the public; materials for DNR-coordinated safety training programs.

Payee/Recipient Detailed Description/Purpose of Expenditure

6ꓸ TOTAL



Name Position Title

Date  Email Address

By March 15 each year email the LG510 to:

2/25

Amber Simon

City or County Acknowledgment

Administrative Services Director

                                                              This form will be made available in alternative format upon request.

763-479-0514
Phone Number

3/6/2025 asimon@ci.independence.mn.us

                                                           gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us
Questions? Call 651-539-1900

LG510 page 3 of 3

I am the official responsible for the financial reporting of the city’s or county’s 10% lawful gambling contribution fund 
under Minn. Stat. § 349.213, subd. 1, and confirm that the contributions received were deposited into a fund 
administered by the city or county. I am aware of the restrictions under Minnesota law on expenditures from this fund 
and affirm that the expenditures meet the definition of charitable contributions as defined in Minn. Stat. § 349.12, subd. 
7a, or are for police, fire, and other emergency or public safety-related services, equipment, and training, excluding 
pension obligations. I affirm these expenditures are accounted for in a manner consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and the city or county does not retain control of funds once they are expended from the city’s or 
county’s account. I have reviewed this report and affirm that the revenues, expenditures, and the fund balance reflect all 
contributions received and expenditures from the 10% contribution fund, and that it is a true, correct, and complete 
report.  The information on the form will become public information when received by the Board, and will be used to 
determine the city's or county's compliance with Minnesota statutes and rules governing lawful gambling activities.

mailto:gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us
mailto:gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us
mailto:gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us
mailto:gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us
mailto:gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us
mailto:gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us
mailto:gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us
mailto:gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us
mailto:gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us
mailto:gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us
mailto:gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us
mailto:gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us
mailto:gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us
mailto:gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us
mailto:gcbcity.reports@state.mn.us

	Lawful Gambling for 2024.pdf
	LG510




